
Preterite


Use preterite to talk about completed action, a narration, that happened at a specific moment in time, a particular instance.


-AR			-ER, -IR


-é 	-amos		-í	-imos


-aste			-iste	


-ó	-aron		-ió	-ieron


   Spelling changes: i->y (leyó, oyeron), c->qu    (busqué), g->gu (jugué), z->c (empecé)


   Stem changes: e->i (pidió, sirvieron) & o->u (durmió, murieron) only –IR in él/ellos form


    IRREGULARS – several common endings:


-e	-imos


-iste


-o	-ieron (drop the i if the stem ends with j)


pud-, tuv-, estuv-, hic-, dij-, traj-, sup-, vin-, quis-, pus-, hub-


   other irregulars


ser/ir- fui, fuiste, fue, fuimos, fueron


dar- di, diste, dio, dimos, dieron(ver= switch d&v)











Imperfect


Use imperfect to talk about continuous past action, that sets the scene or describes or “used to”  or “always would” happen


.-AR			-ER, -IR


-aba 	-ábamos		-ía	-íamos


-abas			-ías	


-aba	-aban		-ía	-ían


IRREGULARS


no spelling or stem changes in imperfect – just these 3:


SER			IR


era	éramos		iba	íbamos


eras			ibas


era	eran		iba	iban


VER


veía	veíamos


veías


veía	veían





SER


Use SER for pretty much everything except emotion and location. It describes appearance and personality, origin/nationality, possession, tells the date/time, profession, and the location of an event (party, meeting, class, reunion, etc) 





Present: soy, eres, es, somos, son


Preterite: fui, fuiste, fue, fuimos, fueron


Imperfect: era, eras, era, éramos, eran


Future: seré, serás, será, seremos, serán


Present perfect: he sido, has sido, ha sido, hemos sido, han sido


Past perfect: había sido, habías sido, había sido, habíamos sido, habían sido





ESTAR


Use ESTAR mostly for location and emotion. You also use it to indicate a change in appearance as well as temporary physical states, such as dirty/clean, open/closed, full/empty, wet/dry, occupied/available, etc. 





Present: estoy, estás, está, estamos, están


Preterite: estuve, estuviste, estuvo, estuvimos, estuvieron


Imperfect: estaba, estabas, estaba, estábamos, estaban


Future: estaré, estarás, estará, estaremos, estarán


Present perfect: he estado, has estado, ha estado, hemos estado, han estado


Past perfect: había estado, habías estado, había estado, habíamos estado, habían estado





POR  


Use POR to indicate by, through, around, near, in exchange for, in search of, and because of.





Ejemplos:


Paso por ti. I’ll come get you.


Esta por aquí. It’s around here.


Voy por leche. I’m going to get milk.


Caminamos por el parque. We walk through the park


Pagué $5 por el boleto. I paid $5 for the ticket.








PARA


Use PARA towards, due date, destination, intended purpose, and goal.





Ejemplos:


Salgo para Madrid. I’m leaving for Madrid.


La tarea es para lunes. The homework is due Monday.


Las sillas son para sentarse. Las sillas son para sentarse.


Para llegar a la universidad, hay que estudiar. In order to get to college, you have to study.





FUTURE  


Can mean will do, but also to guess – must be, might be.


Attach all endings to INFINITIVE


-é	-emos


-ás


-á	-án


Irregulars – attach regular endings to stems below


habr-, har-, pondr-, podr-, dir-, querr-, saldr-, vendr-, tendr-, sabr-


Ejemplos:


Estará en el baño. He must be in the bathroom.


¿Qué hora sera? What time must/could it be?


Iré al parquet mañana. I’ll go to the park tomorrow.





NOUN GENDER  


Feminine endings: -a, -d, -ción, -z,


Masculine endings: -o, -ma, -l, -or, -s (when


       singular)


“irregulars:”	same for masc/fem


el día		el artista, la artista


el lápiz	               el cantante, la cantante


		el joven, la joven





INDIRECT/DIRECT OBJECT PRONOUNS


IOP: me, te, le, nos, les 


DOP: me, te, lo, la, nos, los, las


Which one?


What or whom was the action done? DOP


ex: I gave it to you. it=DOP (Te lo di.)


Q: What did I give? A: it (DOP)


To/for what/whom was the action done? IOP


ex: I gave it to you. you=IOP (Te lo di.)


Q: To whom did I give? A: you (IOP)


**le & les change to “se” when you have 2 Ls in a row – ie; Le los di. Se los di.


Where do they go?


In relation to each other: #1=IOP, #2=DOP


In relation to verb: BEFORE conjugated verbs, attached to infinitives and + commands only





PERFECT TENSES  


The perfect tenses are a compound tense meaning someone has/have/had done something.


HAVE/HAS		DONE


he, has, ha, hemos, han    	-ado (AR


HAD			-ido (ER,IR)


había, habías, había, 


habíamos, había


Irregular participles


escrito, visto, dicho, muerto, abierto, puesto, hecho, vuelto, roto





                   SUBJUNTIVO  


The subjunctive mood is used to express:


1. doubt, denial	2. emotion	3. willing/influencing an action


Verb expressing doubt/emotion/will + QUE + verb in subjunctive


Forming present subjunctive:				examples:


1. “yo” form of present tense			Quiero que tú vayas  I want you to go


2. drop “o”				Dudas que yo pueda You doubt that I can


3. add “opposite” ending (-AR=e, -ER,IR=a)           Temen que no tengamos They’re afraid we don’t have


4. for “tú” form, +s, “nosotros” +mos, “ellos” +n	Es importante que estudiemos It’s important that we study


Irregulars	


haya (haber), vaya (ir), sea (ser), sepa (saber), dé (dar), esté (estar) – follow rule #4 if applicable			


Forming imperfect (past) subjunctive				examples:


1. “ellos” form of preterite			Quería que tú fueras I wanted you to go


2. drop “on”				Dudabas que yo pudiera You doubted I could 


3. add “a”				 	Temían que no tuviéramos They were afraid we didn’t have


4. for “tú” form, +s, “nosotros” +mos, “ellos” +n	Era importante que estudiáramos It was important that we study


Common expressions that take subjunctive:


querer que, dudar que, esperar que, desear que, recomendar que, pedir que, sugerir que, ser importante que, ser necesario que, ojalá (que), gustarle a uno que, ser triste que, temer que, tener miedo de que, negar que, permitir que, no creer que, no pensar que, preferir que, exigir que, insistir en que, aconsejar que, ser una pena que, ser ridículo que, ser terrible que, ser posible que, ser imposible que, molestarle a uno que








When to use infinitives  


Always use infinitives after the following:


tener que to have to


hay que it’s necessary to


prepositions (ex.: a, al, de, por, para, sin, con, etc.)


conjugated verbs like gustar, poder, querer, pensar (means to plan), necesitar, esperar, es necesario, etc.





Neuter article “lo”


lo + adjective = the (adj.) thing or part


ex. Lo bueno es que traje dinero yo. The good thing (part) is that I brought money.


lo que = what (noun)


ex. Tienes lo que quiero. You have what I want


lo + adverb = how (adv.) something is


ex. No sabes lo tonto que es él. You don’t know how silly he is.








